
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 4 March 2019. 
 01476 406080

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Tuesday, 12 March 2019 at 10.30 am
Newton room, The Guildhall Arts Centre, St Peter's Hill, 

Grantham.  NG31 6PZ

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Mike Exton (Chairman)
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Nick Craft, Councillor Bob Russell, Councillor Brian 
Sumner and Councillor Martin Wilkins

Invited 
Cabinet 

Members

Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for Environment

Agenda
1.  Comments from Members of the public

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion.

2.  Membership
The committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3.  Apologies

4.  Disclosure of Interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 

Environment 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


meeting.

5.  Action Notes from the meeting held on 22 January 2019 (Pages 3 - 8)

6.  Updates from the previous meeting

7.  Environment SK and Grounds Maintenance
Members to receive an update.

8.  National Waste Strategy - Upcoming consultations (Page 9)

9.  Street Lighting
Members to receive an update.

10.  Textile Collection
Members to discuss.

11.  Prospective Work Programme (Page 11)

12.  Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent



MEETING OF THE
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 22 JANUARY 2019, 
10.30 AM

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Mike Exton (Chairman)
Councillor Bob Russell

Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew 
(Vice-Chairman)

OFFICERS

Strategic Director Commercial and Operational (Gary Smith)
Assistant Director Commercial and Operational (Ian Yates)
Corporate Operation Lead (Paul Stokes)
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor)

31. MEMBERSHIP

The Chairman welcomed the new Strategic Director Commercial and 
Operational, Gary Smith to the Committee.

32. APOLOGIES

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Craft.

An apology for absence was also received from Councillor Dr. Moseley, who 
was invited to attend the meeting in his role as Cabinet Member for 
Environment. 

33. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

None disclosed.

34. ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 20 NOVEMBER 2018

The action notes from the meeting held on 20 November 2018 were noted.

3

Agenda Item 5



35. UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

A question was asked about the Street Lighting policy and why it had not been 
to Cabinet when a decision had been made by the Committee in July. The 
date on the Cabinet Forward Plan kept changing, what was the reason for the 
delay.    The Strategic Director Commercial and Operational indicated that 
further financial work was being done in relation to the costs involved and 
assumptions made, this work was being undertaken behind the scenes and it 
was suggested that rather than bring it back to Committee that the Cabinet 
Member for Environment decide the best way forward in consultation with the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman and any required report goes direct to Cabinet.  
One Member commented that the length of time and the amount of work that 
the Committee had done in relation to this issue was unacceptable, it should 
not have taken so long.  Members were happy that the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman look at any report with the Cabinet Member for Environment and 
that it go straight to Cabinet.

A further comment was made in relation to whether a quote had yet been 
received in relation to a recycling wheel.  The Assistant Director Commercial 
and Operational stated this would not be possible until all authorities were in 
agreement with the elements involved.

36. DEFRA RESOURCES AND WASTE STRATEGY

Members received a presentation following the publication of DEFRA’s 
Resources and Waste Strategy (R&WS) for England and linkages to the Joint 
Lincolnshire Waste Management Strategy (JLWMS).  The Cabinet had agreed 
to adopt the Joint Lincolnshire Waste Management Strategy at their meeting 
in December.  Since that meeting the Government had published the 
Resources and Waste Strategy for England which had timescales that were 
wide ranging and comprehensive.   There was close alignment between the 
Lincolnshire JMWMS and the R&WS and it gave an idea of the work and 
consultations that the Committee would be involved in during the coming 
months.  There were six main areas contained in the R&WS:

 Overall strategic vision
 Waste collections
 Partnership working
 Waste facilities
 Innovation
 Measuring performance

In the R&WS the overall strategic vision included multiple consultations on 
planned key issues with Government seeking to promote a circular economy 
as promoted in the Lincolnshire JMWMS.  Part of the multiple consultations 
included food waste collections which was topical within South Kesteven and 
the evidence locally will benefit any arrangements for Lincolnshire. It will be 
important to influence the Government’s Strategy to recognise the difference 

4



between those areas were food waste is going to landfill and those areas 
where there had been investment in other infrastructure, such as in 
Lincolnshire.    There were strong links between the JMWMS and the 
Governments promotion of a circular economy and the national strategy was 
also seeking a better quantity and quality in recycling in line with the JMWMS 
objective to standardise recycling across the County.  The national strategy 
also included promoting consistent dry recycling collections which aligned with 
objective 2 of the JMWMS.  The JMWMS included at objective 3 the 
consideration of having separate food waste collections, the national strategy 
spoke about introducing separate food waste collections.

Partnership working between the District and the County was better than it 
had been previously during the last five years which was again an area 
highlighted in the national strategy and also referenced at objective 9 within 
the JMWMS.  Another issue highlighted within partnership working was the 
updating of the recycling credit system and the JMWMS also referenced that 
more innovative ways were needed to fairly distribute costs and savings 
across districts.  Once the County took back the responsibility for letting the 
recycling contracts in the County from the district councils, overnight Boston, 
North Kesteven and South Kesteven lost a significant amount of money.  Over 
time that cost had fluctuated with the price of recycling on the world market 
and the prices per tonne were now in excess of the recycling credits.  This 
was a big issue and innovative ways were needed to find a cost saving 
treatment.

Waste facilities were another area identified within the national strategy and 
contained within the JMWMS where a review of household waste facilities had 
been identified within the action plan.  Household waste facilities needed to be 
fit for the future both locally and nationally.    New ways to treat waste had 
also been identified within the national strategy with new processing facilities 
such as Anaerobic Digestion for food waste.  Currently this was only used for 
food stock and farming.  During the food waste pilot the food waste was 
collected and stored at the Gonerby Hill foot facility near Grantham and then 
shipped to Helmswell Cliff, north of Lincoln.

The last slide gave a timetable of when the government consultations, targets 
and key milestones were tabled for.  Consultation on food waste was due mid-
2019 and therefore would not come back to the Committee until after the 
elections.  Other milestones included the duty of care in relation to electric and 
electronic equipment which had a target of 2020.  In the past fines were given 
under the EU and these were cascaded down.    

He concluded by stating that it was how the Committee contributed to the 
national strategy using a Value For Money judgement.  Reference was again 
made to the food waste pilot and the timelines involved with the government 
consultations.  The Strategic Director Commercial and Operational indicated 
that the national strategy included a lot of information but the “devil was in the 
detail”.  More work would be done looking at the strategy to determine what 

5



the financial implications would be, it was unclear at this time what the impacts 
would be.

A Member asked if the key milestones slide could be sent in A4 format.

 Action Note
A copy of the milestone slide to be sent in A4 size to Members by e-mail.

One member asked about transposition which related to the circular economy, 
real on the ground packaging regulations, how they can be implemented.    
The first consultation would be in relation to the deposit/return scheme, what 
were the proposals, what machines would be used, how would it work.  An 
example was given of a trial scheme which had operated in Scotland in the 
NHS in relation to coffee cups which had a unique ID code.  It was how 
schemes would work in the future, what technology was required, innovations 
such as using phones to scan codes. 

It was mentioned that recycling rates were down to 43% and had been falling 
nationally in the past five-six years.     Germany introduced deposit/return 
schemes 15 years ago but we were only just thinking of introducing such 
schemes, it seemed to a certain extent that nationally we were not as far 
ahead as other countries.

The Assistant Director Commercial and Operation indicated that in relation to 
the food waste trial that we were in a better position than other authorities as 
we would have the evidence from the trial and be aware of pitfalls,  also there 
was already an energy from waste plant in use in the County which other 
areas did not have.

The Chairman thanked the officers for the presentation.

37. GROUNDS MAINTENANCE

Ground Maintenance had been added as a permanent item on the agenda.  
The Assistant Director Commercial and Operational gave an update to 
Members.  All the key elements for the setup of Environment SK were in place 
ready for the end of February.  Nearly 95% of the workforce were expected to 
TUPE transfer over to Environment SK.  A general briefing had been held 
before Christmas with staff together with one to one consultations.  28 staff 
were due to transfer across.

The existing site where the ground maintenance service was currently located 
was perfect for Environment SK and back to back leases had been secured 
for the premises which were located off Swingbridge Road.   The location was 
ideal with close links to the A1.  Orders had been placed for all the necessary 
machinery, vehicles, vans, trucks and mowing equipment which should be 
delivered mid-February.  Policies, procedures and governance were all being 
worked on.  The Head of Street Scene had arranged a demonstration of the 
equipment and kit used and staff had been allowed an input into the decision 

6



making process.  Although it was a steep learning curve there were currently 
no concerns.

One Member asked about the contracts in respect of Parish Councils, had 
there been any interest. The Assistant Director stated that Environment SK 
had been approached by some and costings and pricing models had been 
created and quotes given.  Until the new company was established large 
contracts would be not be looked at.  The Member asked about the size of the 
Parishes and a mixed response had been received to date.

Further questions were asked about the payroll, would this be delivered by the 
Council or externally.  Software had been acquired in house and would be 
undertaken by the accountancy team which would be recharged to the 
Company.  Reference was made to Gravitas and it was stressed that 
Environment SK was a completely different model to Gravitas.   A further 
question was asked about how the service was managed was the same 
officer within the Council still the contact point for any queries to which the 
Assistant Director said yes it would continue the same.  More questions were 
asked about the cutting of grass near to the highway, patches of grass near 
pavements and road ways was there a move for Environment SK to cut 
everything.  Currently Glendale had the contract with the County Council for 
the cutting of grass near the highway.  A Member indicated that the cutting 
would revert back to three cuts rather than the previous two.  This would 
continue although dialogue would be undertaken with the County for how this 
was undertaken in the future to benefit the customer.    More discussion 
followed about the responsibility for cutting the grass at Deepings School and 
the Deepings Special Expense area.  The Assistant Director Commercial and 
Operational offered to speak to the Member outside the meeting.

Members noted the update. 

38. FOOD WASTE

The Assistant Director Commercial and Operational gave a brief update on 
the Food Waste Trial which was being undertaken in parts of South Kesteven.  
Participation in the trial was still above 80% and the food waste being 
collected was approximately 6 tonnes a week.   The food waste was not being 
sent to the energy from waste centre but was being treated using a lower cost 
method.    Two vehicles had been rented with the pods attached and one 
additional operative employed.  Data was still being collected to find out trends 
and any changes in behaviour.  A report would be brought back to the 
Committee in the next few months.

Members noted the update. 

7



39. CLOSE OF MEETING

Just before closing the meeting the Chairman made reference to work still 
being undertaken in relation to the Big Clean project and he asked that his 
thanks be passed on to those undertaking the work.

The meeting closed at 11:30am.

8



9

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2019/20
DRAFT Work Programme

Current Issues/Status Activities and Timetable Outcome sought
Food Waste Trial 
Update 

Update to be given July 2019

Air Quality Committee had received 
various updates during the 
year 2018/19

Review of progress against 
actions and any necessary 
update to align  with 
Government Air Quality 
Strategy 

September 
2019

Environmental Crime September/
October 
2019

Environment SK Members to receive an 
update 

October 
2019 

National Waste 
Strategy

Update/consultations 

Future Items
Public Conveniences

Enforcement

Taxi & Private Hire

Scrap metal Dealers

11

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Action Notes from the meeting held on 22 January 2019
	8 National Waste Strategy - Upcoming consultations
	11 Prospective Work Programme

